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PROCEEDINGS

(Transcript follows in sequence from

Volume 6.)

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Good morning to one and all.

We'd like to welcome everyone today. I will begin
our hearing.

First of all, we've got a preliminary matter.
Before I go with staff for preliminary matters,
Commissioner Skop, you're recognized, sir.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Which way would you like to proceed? Are we still
going to go with the FPL?

CHATRMAN CARTER: Yes, because we'll be
proceeding next with Ms. Dubin, I believe.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Great. I would
like to, if he's available, I'd like to recall
Mr. Jones for additional questions.

MR. BUTLER: At this time?

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Is Mr. Jones still here?

MR. BUTLER: He is.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Yeah, that's right. We
didn't excuse him. He's close to the door today.

MR. JONES: Hope springs eternal. Good

morning.
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COMMISSIONER SKOP: Good morning, Mr. Jones.
I just wanted to briefly follow up on a line of
questioning that I started yesterday. I had some
time overnight to consider and rethink what was
going on within the document that was provided in
terms of the investigational record. You would
agree that the leak was discovered on March 31st,
2006; is that correct?

MR. JONES: Yes, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. And based upon the
testimony I've heard, it took approximately five
days to repair that leak once it was found; is that
correct?

MR. JONES: Yes, Commissioner. But let me
explain that the repair of the leak included the
investigation, the removal of all the insulation
for extended condition, and the inspection and
additional testing that we needed to do to assure
ourselves that the unit was safe to restart. So
when you say repair, there's the physical repair,
but there was much more involved.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes, sir. And I do
appreciate that, because we want to make sure that
our nuclear plants are good to go and everything's

in order before we restart them.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

775

So during that five days that it took to do
all the things that you just mentioned, that
resulted in five days of having to purchase power
because the unit was not able to start up on
schedule; is that correct?

MR. JONES: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Now, I believe
yesterday you previously stated that not only are
your employees but your contractors and their
employees are also briefed about the necessity of
reporting safety issues; is that correct?

MR. JONES: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Now, if I could
draw your attention back to page 37 of the
investigation report, and that was two weeks prior
to discovery of the leak. And in that report, a
second contractor was apparently told by the person
of interest that, quote, "On or about March 14th,
2006, " name deleted, "stated that he," quote,
'drilled a hole in a pipe,' end quote, "at the
power plant." Name omitted "stated that he finally
got a drill bit that worked and drilled a hole in a
pipe." Name omitted "stated that he finally
showed, " expletive deleted.

Now, my concern is, if that second contractor
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employee was told something by the person of
interest two weeks prior to the discovery of the
leak, certainly that person had been trained in
reporting a safety issue. And I can't think of
anything greater of concern than a nuclear safety
issue. And that second person obviously did not
report what the person of interest told them at
that time; is that correct?

MR. JONES: To the best of my knowledge, yes,
that's correct.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Because if he, in
fact, would have done that, given somewhat of my
knowledge of FPL's procedures, I believe there
probably would have been immediate investigation
and immediate safety standdown to act on that
information. And from my -- what I see, I don't
see that happening until after the leak was
discovered two weeks later. Is that correct?

MR. JONES: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. So the question
that I have is that if this person, the second
person, would have reported that leak immediately,
as he had a duty to do and was grossly negligent by
not doing, then certainly the person of interest

could have been immediately identified. Obviously
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they knew where the person of interest was working,
and they could have readily identified the leak

two weeks prior and repaired it and done all the
things you mentioned before the end of the shutdown
period and theoretically avoided the need to
purchase five days of power; is that correct?

MR. JONES: Yes, that is correct.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. So going back to
you, Mr. Butler, I think that we had the discussion
yesterday, and again I'm not going to cross-examine
a witness on a legal issue. You know, I'm not
saying that there should be complete
responsibility, but I am trying to say that the
contractor I think has some liability there, and it
bothers me that we're not going after a contractor.
And I know the way I see it, and I've had some time
to think about this from a legal perspective.
Again, I'm a new lawyer. I don't know everything.
You know, there may be flaws. But, you know,
anyone can bring a legal action and try. You don't
get anything without asking. It's a lot easier to
just try and pass it through to the ratepayer.

But what I see here is certainly you have a
claim under contract law for actual damages, which

I think that you admitted yesterday. But what I
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don't see is why there would not be a negligence
claim against one or more parties, ideally the
contractor, maybe the employee, maybe the sheet
metal union, but again, namely the contractor for
gross negligence, which is a tort, which hopefully
they would have some insurance to cover the
consequential aspect that wasn't covered under
contract law, namely the purchased power. Because
again, had their employee reported a nuclear safety
issue -- and again, this is a big concern for the
NRC, because for the life of me, I'm more concerned
about this second person than I am the first
person.

I mean, I've got a lot of concerns about the
first person, but this was somebody that knew
something that didn't act on something that could
have resulted in a nuclear issue, a nuclear safety
issue. And had that person brought that
information to light in a timely manner, they would
have been able to fix that leak ideally or identify
the leak before they even got into the testing and
avoided that need for the $6.2 million of purchased
power .

So my question is, is that certainly there

seems to be some form of a negligence claim that
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FPL could pursue against the contractor that
doesn't involve hearsay, because you have a
statement from a person that said he had actual
knowledge, and at some point under the doctrine of
respondent superior or vicarious liability the
contractor is somewhat liable there.

MR. BUTLER: We are re-evaluating based on the
information that we have from the FBI, which
obviously we didn't have until pretty recently
ourselves. The one thing I will observe that is
not necessarily a disqualifying factor, but I have
to observe it because I was deeply involved in the
case actually on behalf of a claim for FPL near the
start of my legal career, is that the law in
Florida is fairly unfavorable to negligence claims
against someone where one has contract remedies.

There is a pretty well established principle
of the contract being viewed as, you know, the
bargain between the parties as to allocating what
the responsibility is, and thereby eliminating or
limiting the extent of the negligence claims. But
it's an issue that needs to be explored further. I
agree.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And I appreciate that and

I appreciate that clarification and I understand
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the legal principle. But I also equally recognize
that when you have gross negligence, you know,
sometimes what was contracted for was only actual
damages. It was probably reasonably foreseeable
that if someone was grossly negligent and, you
know, failed to disclose there might be a cause of
action. I'm not saying there is, I'm not saying
there's not. But I'm saying I'd like to see that
pursued or at least some responsibility taken from
the company again because safety briefs were given.
So something fell by the wayside there.

But what I'm trying to say -- and I'm not
doing this in a manner that should be taken as
adverse to FPL. But what I'm trying to say is FPL
should take action to try and indemnify its costs
that it incurred before just passing them through
to the ratepayer. And what I see here concerns me.
I don't have a complete record. I wasn't privy to
the investigation. I'm just looking at
holistically -- I admit maybe there's some stuff
I've missed in here.

But again, I'm just trying to piece together
the pieces of the puzzle on a, you know, 24-hour
turnaround basis in realtime, trying to say, okay,

should we -- is FPL's request legitimate and should
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that be passed through, or do we have concerns
where FPL should take at least some portion of the
responsibility, if not all.

Again, that's a question for my colleagues.
But I do think it's a very, very valid point on the
second person -- second person, because he had a
duty. He knew something that could cause -- that,
you know, was -- you know, nuclear is ultra
hazardous, and he knew something that was a
significant safety concern. And if he was properly
trained he should immediately disclose that.

I mean, even you, I mean, would you admit
that, if I were your client and I told you I had
just drilled a hole in a nuclear power plant, I
think you would have to disclose that to the

authorities if you remediated me and I chose not to

tell.

Would you agree with that? That even -- even
under the -- that's exception to attorney-client
privilege?

MR. BUTLER: I'm struggling with my
recollection of the ethics provision, but I think
you're right.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. So even an attorney

would be forced -- I'm not putting the attorney
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standard on this guy, but if he was properly
trained he should have disclosed. To me it's a
legitimate concern. Again, I'm not trying to --
I'm not trying to say, hey, you're liable for
$6.2 million, but what I'm saying is that
contractor has got some potential liability here,
and I think that that should be looked at and
exhausted before we come directly to the ratepayer
for full recovery.

MR. BUTLER: On the last point,
Commissioner -- and you may want to examine
Ms. Dubin about this aspect, because she will cover
it in her testimony -- the Commission's practice
previously, and we have -- we've followed it and
it's resulted in -- on occasion refunds to
customers because of our ability in recovering
funds, typically we have, the absence of
imprudence, been allowed to recover costs that were
incurred with a commitment that we will pursue any
available opportunity for recovery elsewhere. And
then, to whatever extent we're successful, we flow
that back as an -- through an after-the-fact -- I'm
not sure refund or credit is the better term, but
as a benefit to the customers through whatever

year's fuel proceeding it would come up. We have
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done that before and we certainly will do it here
if we are successful in recovering anything.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Okay. Well, I'm just
looking for, again, a good-faith showing by the
company because, again, it's -- some of the
evidence is circumstantial against the hole
driller, but I think there is a legitimate question
of fact as to whether that person should have been
granted access in the first place. And I know that
the argument has been that the NRC matrix is what
we use. You know, I think some independent
discretion goes there.

But what to me is even more straightforward is
you had a person with actual knowledge of a
potential nuclear safety issue that was a contract
employee that failed to report that, and had he
reported that in a timely manner, the apparent leak
or the leak could have -- I mean, the hole could
have been found, repaired, and the unit gone online
as scheduled and avoided the need for $6.2 million.

So to me it's a little bit harder to even
overlook that one, because it's not just one person
now, it's two people and, frankly, you know, that
scares me, that somebody had knowledge of something

and didn't -- didn't disclose it, if that, in fact,
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is true.

MR. BUTLER: I understand. And as Mr. Jones
testified, had we known it, we would have responded
timely. ©Not knowing it timely is concerning, I
agree, and it is something we will take a look at.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano?

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Well, Commissioner
Skop brings up an interesting point, and I wonder
what staff's opinion is, and also OPC and -- and
the others that are looking at this too. Because
if there is a way and if that contractor has
responsibility and the company can go to that
contractor and there's less of a hit on the
consumer, well, then, that's something we ought to
be looking at. And I'd like to know other's
opinion on that, what they think.

I mean, it sounds like there may be a remedy
there. Second person didn't say anything. It did
cause the company to have to go out and purchase
fuel elsewhere. And if, as I said, if it would
shift some of that pain from all on the consumer to
maybe to the contractor as well as the company, it

may -- there may be a remedy there. So I need some

other legal opinions on it.
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Is it possible, and if that's possible, I
heard the company say that they have done this
before, that they could -- if they are successful
later, I'd rather know now what the chances are, to
be honest with you, and if there's a possibility
there that the contractor -- I don't know how, but
I'd like to know if the contractor can be held
responsible for its individual who did not come to
the company and report that.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Would you like to hear from
staff --

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I think staff as
well as our other attorneys here.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: I think Mr. Burgess wants
to --

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Burgess -- let's go to
Mr. Burgess first. Mr. Burgess, you're recognized.

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. Thank you very much,
Mr. Chairman. And to that point, I was intending
to raise and seek the Commission's approval for the
ability of the parties to brief the entire issue of
the drilled hole. Even if you issue a bench ruling
on the entire balance of the fuel adjustment
issues, I was going to ask, because of how much

significant information came in, and this issue
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being Exhibit A of the import of this new
information that came in a couple of days before
the hearing, that even if your inclination is, your
intent is to issue a bench warrant -- a bench
ruling on all the rest of the issues in the case,
that you allow the parties to brief and your staff
to analyze the briefs and make -- bring a
recommendation to you so that you have greater time
for these issues to be explored and addressed by
all the parties and your staff to make an analysis
and bring you that.

So if we did that, it may get to Commissioner
Argenziano's point and perhaps allow us to address
some of the issues that haven't been fully
explored, as Commissioner Skop is --

CHATIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop?

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you. And too,

Mr. Burgess, with respect to the point I just
raised, would OPC's position be that that would be
appropriate to avoid passing the costs to the
ratepayer if there were remedies available that
would be against the contractor?

MR. BURGESS: Oh, absolutely. Yes,
absolutely, Commissioner. That is a point that we

are very interested in.
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COMMISSIONER SKOP: All right. Thank you.

MR. BURGESS: Thank you.

MR. BUTLER: Mr. Chairman, may I respond
briefly to Mr. Burgess's suggestion?

CHATIRMAN CARTER: Sure. And I'll come back to
Mr. Wright and Ms. Bradley, and Mr. -- had a brain
cramp -- McWhirter. Mr. Butler? And then I can
make -- and then I'll come to staff. You guys can
back clean up. Mr. Butler?

MR. BUTLER: I fail to see how the issue
raised by Commissioner Skop is something that can
be usefully briefed by the parties in this setting.
I mean, we know that the contractor has denied
responsibility for the incident. That doesn't mean
the contractor necessarily could not be held
responsible, but it's going to have to be something
that a court would determine.

On -- we are going to end up presenting
information that almost certainly will result in a
conclusion that the Commission -- to the Commission
that there might be a cause of action, but it's not
certain. I think that's where we'll end up.

That's where Public Counsel will end up with any
briefing on the specific issue of the availability

of enforceable remedies against others in this
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instance.

It seems like that the pathway that the
Commission has taken previously is the appropriate
one because it doesn't try to either force a
decision into a certain time period or require that
the decision be made on the basis of just
speculating on what might be possible. You know,
we should pursue remedies, you know, evaluate the
availability of them, and make the decision if we
have information and an ability to pursue the
claims against others, do so, and return any
amounts that we recover to customers. I think it
works very effectively. It has before.

We are absolutely committed to pursuing
remedies, we've done so, and it just doesn't seem
like that that process is something that deferring
to briefing would advance the cause.

CHATRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Just to that, and
I'm trying to balance things out, because the
Commission could decide that -- that it shouldn't
be the burden of the consumer. We don't know the
outcome of that yet with my colleagues and what
conclusion I guess we're going to come to.

What would be the difference if you, I guess,
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instead of shifting it to the consumer now, going
out and finding out if you have a case against the
contractor, and then if you do recover those
dollars, then you will recover them and get to keep
them.

MR. BUTLER: Well, Commissioner, if one
assumes that the Commission determines, and I
realize that it may be presumptuous to make the
assumption, but if one assumes the Commission
determines that FPL was not imprudent in its
actions, that is a conclusion that I think entitles
us to recover the costs that we incurred as a
result of the replacement of power.

We also have an obligation -- now, there may
be others who are also -- who are responsible to us
and we can recover the funds from those sources.
But it seems like that if we are put in a position
where we don't recover the costs, even though we
were prudent, except to the extent that we are able
to go and get them from a third party, it's
basically imposed a new legal standard on FPL. And
FPL is completely committed to aggressively
pursuing recovery from others. We've done it

before.

And in the -- in the context, in a decision
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which the company behaved prudently itself, there
are others that are possibly responsible for the
consequences. It fits the regulatory construct of
how the fuel clause works. And the idea of
recovering prudently incurred costs currently to
allow us to recover, in this instance allow us to
keep, because we've actually already recovered, it
would be a matter of refunding the costs in
question, with an obligation that we understand and
that we will pursue that whatever we can get from
others is obviously to the benefit of customers and
would be flowed back to them as a credit.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Did you say at the
beginning that -- I guess I forgot what you said at
the beginning. I remember there was a question
there I was going to ask you about -- I guess my
question to you was how come you couldn't go and,
you know, see if you have a case, try to recover
from that contractor, and I think your first
response was that you couldn't do that without us
ruling that you were not prudent?

MR. BUTLER: If that was what I said, I didn't
mean to say that. We certainly could. I mean,
we're not legally precluded from seeking a claim

against a contractor until you have ruled.
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I was trying to say that I think that the
Commission's consistent practice precedent in the
fuel adjustment proceedings, and also consistent
with the logic of recovering prudently incurred
costs, is that if we -- if you determine that we
have prudently incurred them, then we should be
allowed to recover them now.

But then also as a separate related but
independent issue is our duty in all instances
where there are other possible avenues of recovery
to seek recovery from those avenues, and to the
extent we are successful to, you know, credit that
to the benefit of the customers.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Can I ask to that
point, how many other cases -- and forgive me
because I haven't been here that long -- have there
been that are exactly or kind of like this one,
where there's a responsibility or an intentional
act, that responsibility is more of the issue
rather than a prudent cost just because something
else had occurred, not intentional act? I see a
difference in the scenario.

MR. BUTLER: Well, there are not a great
number of them. Fortunately that means that the

plants haven't been experiencing these sort of
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circumstances regularly. There was one some number
of years ago in which a group of overly
enthusiastic teenagers drove a Jeep into the
cooling canal at the St. Lucie power plant, and it
was handled exactly like what I just described.

The conclusion was that FPL had not done
anything imprudent in failing to maintain adequate
security, but the people nonetheless circumvented
it, got their Jeep into the canal, and the company
ended up actually pursuing a claim against the
insurer of the driver of the Jeep, and those funds
were returned to customers. I think Ms. Dubin
actually mentions that in her testimony, and you
can examine her on the details of it.

But that's probably the one that comes to mind
to me that is the closest analogy. And as I say, I
would concede there aren't a lot of examples, and I
will also say again that I'm glad there aren't a
lot of examples to compare.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
And I'll pick you back off Commissioner
Argenziano's question. I guess it's -- my
understanding is that the cost of the purchased

power has already been recovered. 1It's just a
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question -- the question before the Commission is
whether FPL should be responsible. And I think
that's the issue as framed; am I correct?

MR. BUTLER: That is the issue as framed. And
then the practical reality of that is that I guess
if you concluded we were responsible there would
end up needing to be an affirmative refund of those
monies, because they have already been collected
from customers.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And I think, based on the
discussion we've had, I mean, certainly that's a
genuine issue of material fact as to the degree if
any of FPL's responsibility or the contractor's
responsibility.

But, yvou know, I know the example that you
just presented about teenagers driving into the
cooling pond or what have you, to me that seems to
be a little bit more remote and more attenuated
than the issue we have at hand, where you have at
least two individuals. One's a bad actor, a person
of interest that drilled the hole, and the second
one that failed to report a nuclear safety
incident, both of which were inside the plant, not
just trying to, you know, what do they call it,

joyride. But -- yeah, I'm getting old. I have to
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remember back to my play.

But, you know, to me, I would struggle, and
again, I'm not trying to take an adverse position
against FPL. What I am trying to do in the same
manner in which FPL has no problem insulating
itself from risk, I'm trying to insulate the
ratepayer from risk, exhausting all possible
remedies, before such time as they are required to
incur the cost. Actually they already have,
because it's been recovered from them.

Now, what I'm trying to get to the bottom of
is, you know, we should seek to indemnify them from
the full payment of this because, again, I think
there is some responsibility to -- to be had. It
would be a lot simpler if, you know, we could go
pursue legal claims. Or it would be a lot simpler
and probably put myself and my colleagues in less
of a hardship position if there was some
willingness, again, to proactively kind of accept
some form or aspect of responsibility. And I
just -- you know, frankly, I've never seen that
done. And, you know, it's troubling.

So again to me, I think that we need to get to
the bottom of, you know, pursuing all remedies

available to FPL, and I don't know whether
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concurrently, you know, perhaps maybe if we're
forced to make a decision, maybe we refund a
portion of it and then, subject to recovery or
interest at the commercial paper rate or what have
you, you know. Again, that's a decision we're
going to have to make.

But I do want to address one quick point that
you made in your opening arguments, going to
chilling effect resulting from regulatory
accountability. And, you know, in certain aspects,
you know, it's certainly a valid argument. In this
one I would adamantly disagree. Even in their dire
straits, I think that the capital markets are
sophisticated enough to distinguish between this
instance and any resulting disallowance by this
Commission from other cost recovery matters.

I don't really think it's plausible to think
that this would have a chilling effect on new
nuclear construction. ‘I mean, people can
rationally relate to the fact that somehow a hole,
not by itself, got drilled into a critical nuclear
component. And I think that people could
reasonably understand why a commission would be apt
to exercise its discretion to import some part of

responsibility and disallowance of cost recovery to
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protect the consumers, if it were to be determined.

Again, that's the keywords. If it were to be
determined that there was some responsibility there
on the part of the utility.

MR. BUTLER: Commissioner Skop, I would
respectfully disagree. Mr. Avera will be
testifying later, going to that point. But
fundamentally, FPL's perspective on this is that it
is regulated by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission
in the specific area of safe, reliable operation of
its nuclear plants.

One of the things that the NRC is directly and
specifically concerned about is access to the
plants. FPL did what the NRC directed it to do.

In fact, actually did a little bit more
aggressively, or implemented a little more
aggressively than the NRC expects its access
authorization, and somebody slipped through the
cracks. And it's very unfortunate. We wish it
weren't the case. And obviously the Commission
does, everybody does. Customers of FPL clearly
wish that weren't the case.

But it happened that way in spite of our
efforts to comply with all applicable NRC

expectations and requirements on access control.
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And I do believe that were we to be found
imprudent, responsible, whatever the term of art
would be, applied to it, in spite of our having
followed the specific directions of the regulator
that is charged with ensuring safety and including
proper access of the plants, that that would have a
chilling effect. Mr. Avera will be speaking to
that.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And again, I would
respectfully disagree. I mean, the amount in
question is trivial in relation to most amounts
that this Commission faced. I mean, it's analogous
to basically saying that -- no, I'm not even going
to go there.

But anyway, I would point out that it's not
just one person here. It is two people, because
again, what critically concerns me, and if I was
not subject to ex parte rules, I would have already
written a letter to the NRC, the chairman of the
NRC, asking, hey, you know, there's a problem here.
Because the second person, a contractor who had
been trained, was apparently told about a hole in a
nuclear pipe. He didn't tell a soul. That's a
problem. That's a significant problem. If the

NRC's not concerned about that, frankly they're not
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doing their job.

So, to me, I'm concerned. I'm equally
concerned with the NRC's action. I would hope they
would take a look at this. I mean, because this is
a critical safety concern. If somebody has actual
knowledge that there is a hole in a nuclear plant
piping, that's a problem. I don't see how you can
say logically. I don't sleep well at night knowing
that.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I understand what
Commissioner Skop is expressing. We all would be
looking at, how could anybody say that, hey, you
knew that there was a hole in this and you didn't
say anything about it. I don't understand how the
company could foresee that that person knew about
that, so -- so to that point, I'm having a hard
time.

If the NRC guidelines -- these are the guys
who say this is what you will do in a nuclear power
plant, put these guidelines down, this is where I
draw the line in trying to be fair. I don't want
the consumer to take any hits they don't need to
take, because God knows they've had enough and

they're having a hard time. So I'm looking for
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those same things that you are.

Now, the first thing you talked about is a
second party knowing and it's their responsibility.
I'm there with you on that one. But as far as
telling an entity, we talk about certainty in the
market and certainty in places. If I'm the person
who's responsible for a nuclear power plant, and
I'm saying this to the OPC and to others too
because this is what I'm struggling with. Here's
the guidelines set by big guys. If the company has
followed the guidelines, then how do you say the
company is responsible?

Now, the NRC, if you want, maybe if we can as
a commission -- I don't even know if we do that.
In the Legislature we'd send off a letter and say,
you know what, we think you haven't addressed maybe
the fact that the guy failed the written portion of
the test, and maybe you should send down in your
guidelines to nuclear power plants new areas that
you need to be looking at, like go back in and look
at why the guy failed. Go back and look at why
those charges were dismissed, because again, I have
a problem in being fair.

And I don't know -- you know, there are people

who probably don't want me to be fair, and that
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usually happens on both sides of the aisle. But in
being fair, when I look at the charges against the
person, if they're dismissed, and I live in
America, they're dismissed. But maybe now, knowing
that, you know, the guy was -- with the AG was and
so on, the NRC could send back something to the
regulators, and, I mean, being a regulator, you
want people to think a little outside of the box
too. But truthfully what is their obligation?

And if the big guys are saying these are the
guidelines, well, then the guidelines could be
faulty, but you can't fault the company if they
followed the guidelines.

So the remedies I see, and this is just one
commissioner speaking, is possibly what you
indicated first, that there is additional
responsibility somewhere else that could relieve
the consumer from that.

And something still keeps going back to that
site test. So the legal minds in this room should
be looking in that area, I think, is where I only
see, because I can't come up with the company
having foresight of the second person knowing it
and didn't say anything. And I can't come up with

the explanation as to the company, you know, should
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have gone beyond the guidelines. Should they?
Maybe. And when you think about it in -- in some
type of -- what word am I looking for?

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Hindsight.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Hindsight, or to
say, you know, the circumstances may be a red flag
is here. But if we as a country say these are your
guidelines and then when you follow the guidelines
say boom, boom, you know, you can't do it that way.

So the other point -- I'd rather see us
explore the other points to that, and that's where
this commissioner feels that we have any kind of
movement in that direction to alleviate the burden
from the consumer.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And I tend to agree with
that. Again, with respect to the first part,
whether the person was properly granted unescorted
access, I do think there's room for improvement in
the NRC process there because, from what I've
heard, there's nothing in place today that would
prevent the same thing from happening elsewhere.
Because the -- if we're going to stick solely to
the guidelines, and the company is not going to
exercise its independent discretion because it

controls access, NRC doesn't control access, the
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company is the ultimate --

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Yes.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Excuse us. If T
understand -- I understand that while they could
have used in it more aggressive independent
discretion, the guidelines are still the
guidelines. And I would hope the company would be
in discussion with the NRC about saying, hey, maybe
we need more guidelines, and maybe this Commission
could say, hey, you know, we're a little concerned.
We had this case in front of us and, you know,
they've met the guidelines, perhaps you should take
a second look at the guidelines.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And to that point and to
touch on Commissioner Edgar's comment that she
made, certainly I would think that the company
would take lessons learned and improve their own
internal review on a forward-going basis, because
if the NRC requirements don't currently address red
flag issues such as this, it may be that the
company would independently bolster its review so
that when you see maybe arrest record, even though
charges were dismissed, that heightens the level of

review to prevent recurrence of an employee of this
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restricted access area.

So again, I agree with you guys on that point,
because again, that's a judgment call they
followed, the NRC regulations. I do think there
was some room for independent discretion. But
again, my critical focus is trying to indemnify the
ratepayers and exhausting all remedies before we
just unilaterally pass it on to the consumers. And
here --

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: All of us.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Yes, all of us. I don't
want to speak for me. All of my colleagues I think
share that interest. But the costs have already
been incurred by the ratepayer, FPL has already
recovered, and maybe, again, for the second aspect,
maybe we require FPL to go out and diligently
pursue all civil remedies, and if recovery is
subject to interest to the ratepayer, and that
would maybe make part of this go away. Does that
sound reasonable?

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Yes, it does. And I want to
continue the discussion, Commissioners. But let me
do this and then we'll come back to the bench. I

think Mr. Burgess had raised a question and we kind

803

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

804

of -- and it is, you know, related to what we're
discussing and I was going to allow the intervenors
to speak to that before I went to staff and came
back to the bench.

But, Mr. Burgess, we probably -- you probably
forgot -- they may have forgotten what you said.
But you're recognized again and then we'll go with
Mr. Wright, Mr. McWhirter, then Ms. Bradley.

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And
judging by Mr. Butler's response, perhaps I
miscommunicated. I am not saying that the reason
that I'm asking for the opportunity to brief is
solely to address the issue Commissioner Skop
brought to light. I'm saying that because a
document came in to the record within days of the
beginning of the hearing and that document itself
has led to hours of questions --

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Days.

MR. BURGESS: -- from the Commissioners --
days of questions from the Commissioners
themselves, that normally we have months to prepare
and present a case on, and we didn't have it in
this case, that I think the Commission would be
better served for this issue to allow the parties

to try to put it into an organized context and
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present to you how we see the issues, and what
Commissioner Skop raised is one of the issues that
we would seek to raise, but it's not the only thing
that we would try to raise through briefs. 2and I
think you would be well served to get that and to
get your staff's perspective on it before making a
decision on all of these issues that have arisen
and kind of surprised each one of us at the 1llth
hour.

CHATIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Mr. Wright? I'll
come back to the bench. I'm going to go to the
parties. Mr. Wright?

MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
Florida Retail Federation supports Public
Counsel's, effectively, motion that we be allowed
to submit briefs. This is an important issue and,
like Public Counsel, we would -- we would plan,
more likely for efficiency purposes, we would
probably co-author our brief and cosign a brief
with Public Counsel so you don't get whatever it
is, seven different briefs. But we would like to
brief the totality of issue 13C.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. McWhirter.

MR. MCWHIRTER: Good morning.
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CHAIRMAN CARTER: Good morning.

MR. McWHIRTER: You didn't wake me up,

Mr. Chairman. My concern is the unstated concern
or the unstated probability that you might rule
from the bench without giving us an opportunity to
reflect upon what we've heard here today. I would
like to amplify Mr. Burgess's request to give a
short period of time, not a long period of time,
but a short period of time to let us explain in
brief some of the things we think are important on
all these issues.

And to show -- you just mentioned that we've
spent days on a six-million-dollar issue. The last
witness in this case, Mrs. Dubin, is going to
provide the justification for a $1.4 billion
increase, and she's going to do it <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>